### 27 Minutes to Midnight

#1 PRAYER SECRET FOR 2020



(Open to the general public - please share)

www.firesprings.com

2679 Howard Ave. Suite 138 Windsor, ON N8X 3X2, Canada

### 27 Minutes to Midnight

#### #1 PRAYER SECRET FOR 2020

#### "First I Got Mad. Then Sad. Then Challenged."

"Dear elisha,

You don't know me.

But I have developed a spiritual gift I know you prize.

I now know how to hear the voice of the LORD clearly.

Today I can tell when God is the One speaking and when He is not the one speaking.

All thanks to an email you sent out about 3 years ago. That email got me mad for days because in it you made this provocative statement:

'If doctors knew as little about medicine as today's prophets know about God, half the population would die every year.'

First, I got angry. Then sad. After many days I pulled out that email. I read it again. It challenged me.

I made up my mind to join every program on the site and pray every prayer. I needed to prove you wrong.

But instead I got a surprise. **Some of these prayers are downright** dangerous.

Like the ones we prayed during the last Platinum Edition.

Around Week 3 I got the shocking revelation my spouse had been cheating on me.

I didn't want to believe it until I confronted him and he broke down and confessed all.

This had been going on for 4 years - behind my back!

Today I've become my own personal prophet, as you like to put it.

Glory to God for using that simple message to wake me up from spiritual slumber"

... Prophetic Eagle Zee

==

Praise the LORD.

I remember that email very well.

It ruffled a few feathers out there.

But it was right on target.

I make no apologies for it.

That message is even more relevant today as we step into the New Year.

# WARNING! The Mad Prophets Are Out of The Cage

The word for this year is very simple.

Short. Sweet. Straight to the point.

Before we begin please close your eyes and take these 3 prayers with a holy shout:

1. Evil voices speaking into the affairs of my life, be silenced forever by the power in the blood of Jesus.

2. Powers summoning my name for evil, answer your own summons by fire in the name of Jesus.

3. Every embodiment of demons and ancestral powers attacking me and seeking to renew bondage in my life, collide with the Rock of Ages in the name of Jesus

(Please give this last prayer 5 mins everyday throughout the period of this program).

#### Now we're ready.

From: elisha

Calvary greetings!

This year 2020 marks the beginning of a brand-new decade.

I call it the "Decade of Mad Prophets."

Before I explain what that means...

... let's first go to our classic message at the gates of the New Year (for the benefit of those who are here for the first time).

#### \* Classic Message at The Gates Begins \*

There are 3 key principles that you need to arm yourself with.

Here's the VERY first one.

You need to apply it diligently at the "gate" i.e. midnight as Dec 31, 2019 transitions into Jan 1, 2020.

(The rest I will continue to share step by step in the Members Forum which opens shortly).

If you're ready, let's go...

### Why We Pray At The Gates of The New Year

We'll open this section with a short prayer.

Please just close your eyes where you are now and fire this singular prayer bullet with fire in your spirit:

"O LORD, open my spiritual understanding today in the name of Jesus. Amen."

Let's start off by looking at the popular story of the ten virgins.

In Matthew 25:1-10 we read:

\*\*\*

"Then shall the kingdom of heaven be likened unto ten virgins, which took their lamps, and went forth to meet the bridegroom.

And five of them were wise, and five were foolish.

They that were foolish took their lamps and took no oil with them: But the wise took oil in their vessels with their lamps.

While the bridegroom tarried, they all slumbered and slept. And at midnight there was a cry made, Behold, the bridegroom cometh; go ye out to meet him.

Then all those virgins arose and trimmed their lamps. And the foolish said unto the wise, give us of your oil; for our lamps are gone out.

But the wise answered, saying, Not so; lest there be not enough for us and you: but go ye rather to them that sell, and buy for yourselves.

And while they went to buy, the bridegroom came; and they that were ready went in with him to the marriage: and the door was shut."

\*\*\*

This is a familiar story.

Two phrases are of particular interest to us here:

- (i) At **midnight** there was a cry made...
- (ii) The **door** was shut...

We pull out the first 2 keys from the verses above.

Here is Key #1

Midnight is the time when "doors" are spiritually shut against people in the realm of the spirit.

#### Then Key #2

It is also a time when satanic cries are made against people by the evil powers operating along the bloodlines of their families.

Please hold these thoughts while we back up to Psalm 24:7-10:

"Lift up your head, O ye gates; and be ye lift up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of glory shall come in.

Who is this King of glory? The LORD strong and mighty, the LORD mighty in battle.

Lift up your heads, O ye gates; even lift them up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of glory shall come in.

Who is this King of glory? The LORD of hosts, he is the King of glory."

\*\*\*

Again we see the word "doors" but this time, at the appearance of an Almighty, Sovereign Power...

... Instead of being shut, the door (and gates) are being commanded to "lift up" i.e. to open immediately.

Putting what we've read so far together, we arrive at the inescapable conclusion that doors can be opened and shut in the spiritual realm.

These "doors" might be invisible to the carnal eye.

They are spiritual realities all the same.

In many places in the Bible, we see references to doors and gates.

For instance, we find them at:

- the entry point to cities (1 Kings 17)
- temples (Acts 3)
- prisons (Acts 12)
- palaces (Esther 5)

At the gates of the city, important decisions, judgments and verdicts were handed down.

Controversies were settled there.

Deals were cut and transactions sealed at the gate.

Honor was bestowed at the gate.

Blessings were pronounced at the gate...

And curses were issued as punishment for offenses at the gate.

Matter of fact, the gate played such a pivotal role in the life of every community that in times of war...

... the enemy's first order of business was to seize control of the gate!

What's this got to do with the New Year?

You can liken the New Year to a well-fortified city with a strong gate.

The gate is the entry point into the city.

#### **Please Listen Carefully...**

For the purpose of this conversation...

The door or gate of the New Year is currently shut.

It is supposed to swing open IN THE SPIRIT at 12 midnight on January 1st.

Notice that I used the word, 'supposed' ... that is what should happen in an ideal situation.

The reality, however, is that for most people, the gate of the New Year never truly opens to them spiritually...

... it remains tightly shut against them year after year, often without their knowledge!

Why is this so?

The Bible reveals that there are invisible "horsemen setting themselves in array at the gate" (*Isaiah 22:7*).

#### And here's the SECRET revealed:

The entrance or gate to the New Year is the midnight hour between December 31 and January 1st.

The truth remains that this gate is the theater of the hottest spiritual battle you can think of.

Whoever takes control of that gate in the crucial first few seconds of the New Year determines what happens throughout the entire year! What I'm sharing with you is well-understood by the children of darkness.

No wonder our Lord Jesus once said:

... for the children of this world are in their generation wiser than the children of light - Luke 16:8b

At the critical midnight hour between December 31st and January 1st the children of this world (darkness) ...

... that the Lord Jesus is referring to here will be busy taking off in their evil hovercraft and making evil prophetic pronouncements to...

- 1. renew ancient, generational bondage in the lives of their victims
- 2. **capture** the entire year spiritually (thereby shutting the gates of the next 12 months against unsuspecting people).

At this exact same time, modern-day believers will be dancing and partying the night away!

Unknown to them --

At this critical hour of midnight when the new year is being "delivered" (think of a woman in labor)...

... whatever decrees are issued (good or bad) have the capacity to alter the destiny of an individual, family, church or nation.

Let's bring this closer to home...

This May Hurt...

You remember ...

How many prophecies of greatness and prosperity that Christians (including you) usually receive at the beginning of every year?

How many of them ever come to pass?

You know why?

At the most critical first few seconds of the New Year, the enemy gets busy "shutting the gate" and cancelling those prophecies ...

... by issuing wicked, ungodly decrees against people, using words anointed with satanic power!

#### No wonder:

- Doors of opportunity remained tightly shut throughout the year.
- The heavens refused to open and pour out the expected blessings in abundance.
- Divine benefits refused to manifest
- Divine helpers? Nowhere to be found
- Most prayers went unanswered... leaving so many scratching their heads.

If you keep records of all the wonderful prophecies received every New Year (like I do) you'll realize that most of them NEVER see the light of day.

It doesn't matter how many great men or women of God prophesied.

#### Why?

Because Christians allow the enemy (either out of ignorance or sheer laziness) to take control of the GATES when it mattered most...

#### At the critical moment of transition...

... when most people are in slumber or dancing the night away.

You see, in the spiritual realm, just one second's delay can cost you an entire year.

Like the prayer bullets you see shortly, if you were to pray them at any other time of the year, you won't achieve the same results.

[except in very few cases as we will discuss at various times during the year in the Members' Forum].

Thankfully, the Lord has not left us ignorant about this matter.

#### The Big Reveal

15 years ago, He gave us the battle plan which has never failed.

The result?

Those who meet us at the gates are the very ones sharing tens of thousands of testimonies on our websites year in year out.

If we execute on this plan diligently...

These 90 minutes AT THE GATE of 2020 could save you 9 months/years of frustration, disappointment and sorrow.

\* End of Classic Message at The Gates \*

This year there's a lot more at stake.

It is the beginning of a new decade.

# Welcome to ... The Decade of Mad Prophets

We are about to see more manifestations of what we read in 2 Timothy 3:1-8.

Because the enemy is releasing a fresh horde of Jannes and Jambres to oppose the move of God at every turn.

(According to tradition Jannes and Jambres were the magicians in Pharaoh's court who withstood and reproduced the miracles of Moses and Aaron in Exodus 7 - One New Man Bible)

They are already hard at work as you read this (unlike believers who think it is OK to be lukewarm because we're living in a period of grace).

That's the reason the mad prophets are being unleashed.

(Hint: there's always a vacancy for mad prophets).

At the instigation of these mad prophetic warriors, there's soon going to be a major clash of civilizations.

Remember Elijah.

In his days he did the unthinkable... in order to draw out and disgrace the enemies of God.

Another spectacular contest is in the making as I write this.

You can be part of it (I mean, the LORD could reveal this to you way ahead of schedule, as He's already done to thousands of others).

#### Remember:

Surely the Lord GOD does nothing, unless He reveals His secret to His servants the prophets. – Amos 3:7

It all begins when you plug yourself into the prophetic flow just like the writer of the email at the top of this page.

In the battles of life, you will have access to the choicest weapons of offense ... plus the super-weapon of defense from the divine armory.

#### However...

If you're satisfied to remain as one of those second-hand Christians ...

... who wait for others to prophesy and see 'visions' for them, you will fall into a lot of deception and grief in the days ahead.

Please understand that does not have to be your portion.

The heartbeat of God this moment is for you to:

Strive to move close enough to Him so He can share divine secrets with you...

... and give you confidential, divine directions to advance His kingdom.

Here's a great example of how that works from the book of Acts:

\*\*\*

Now there was a certain disciple at Damascus named Ananias; and to him the Lord said in a vision, "Ananias."

And he said, "Here I am, Lord."

So the Lord said to him, "Arise and go to the street called Straight, and inquire at the house of Judas for one called Saul of Tarsus, for behold, he is praying. And in a vision he has seen a man named Ananias coming in and putting his hand on him, so that he might receive his sight."

Then Ananias answered, "Lord, I have heard from many about this man, how much harm he has done to Your saints in Jerusalem. And here he has authority from the chief priests to bind all who call on Your name."

But the Lord said to him, "Go, for he is a chosen vessel of Mine to bear My name before Gentiles, kings, and the children of Israel. For I will show him how many things he must suffer for My name's sake."

And Ananias went his way and entered the house; and laying his hands on him he said, "Brother Saul, the Lord [d]Jesus, who

appeared to you on the road as you came, has sent me that you may receive your sight and be filled with the Holy Spirit." Immediately there fell from his eyes something like scales, and he received his sight at once; and he arose and was baptized.

-- Acts 9:10-18

Today, many will say, quite rightly, this man was Paul's father in the Lord.

They would refer to him by many grandiose titles.

Yet, after this one incident in the Bible, this man is never mentioned again.

Meaning:

There were thousands of believers just like him in every city everywhere.

The LORD could tap any of them on the shoulder at anytime and send them to deliver very important messages.

After that you would never hear of them again... unless the LORD had another assignment for them.

By the way, the dictionary definition ...

... of a prophet is a person who speaks for God or a deity, or by divine inspiration.

The LORD is searching for you today.

Will you stand up to be counted?

#### **How to Pray Into Year 2020**

Here's the order of events:

**Level o** - Storming the Gate of 2020 (public event for all)

Level 1 - 2020 Prayer Academy (New members - access required)

**Level 2** - Sapphire 2020 Edition (PA Graduates - access required)

#### Be An Overcomer With This Year's Prayers

As we approach the start of the program on December 30, 2019...

... there are 2 simple, but VERY crucial, steps you must take, if you really want to see the finger of God manifest speedily on your behalf:

# Simple Step #1: Make Doubly Sure JESUS Is In the Driver's Seat of Your Boat

"Not by works of righteousness which we have done, but according to his mercy he saved us..." - Titus 3:5

No matter how far you may have strayed from the LORD this year, He wants you back NOW.

He is able and willing to forgive your sins, cleanse you and give you a fresh new start in 2020... if only you'd go on your knees and cry out for His mercy NOW.

YES, it is up to you to open the door of your heart for Him to come in and do a work of transformation in your life right now.

Please take a moment to do this, if you need to ... before you even think of going further.

# Simple Step #2: All Secret Sins Must Go (And I Do Mean ALL)

Please realize that God sees your heart even now as you read this. He knows what you do in secret. Jesus Christ died on the cross to pay for your sins, mine and that of the whole world.

Of course, this might sound like foolishness to the people of the world (in the secular world I meet "sophisticated" people all the time who say so).

But you know the Bible says:

For the message of the cross is foolishness to those who are perishing, but to us who are being saved it is the power of God. - 1 Cor.1:18

Since you have read up to this point, I believe you are NOT one of those who are perishing.

So, let me congratulate you for that!

About our Lord Jesus Christ, we are assured this:

\*\*\*

Who His own self bare our sins in His own body on the tree - 1 Peter 2:24

\*\*\*

Unto him that loved us, and washed us from our sins in his own blood - Rev. 1:5

\*\*\*

If you are new to this kind of teaching...

I must alert you that if you follow these 2 simple steps above with all sincerity ...

... before even firing the opening shots, you may not be able to handle the flood of peace and joy that will invade your heart ...

... not to mention the testimonies that are sure to follow.

(We record tens of thousands of testimonies every year to the glory of God) Last year by this time I challenged those who went through these simple steps diligently to get ready for an overflow of breakthroughs in their lives.

They were NOT disappointed.

Before we got to DAY 3 of the program, our testimony inbox was filling up so fast ...

... we had to redirect people to go to the Forum to post their testimonies under the COMMENT section with their own hands!

Praise the LORD who delights in answering the prayers of His people.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **Prayers to Storm the Gate 2020 Edition**

#### Here's Your 14-Day Prayer Plan At The Gate of 2020

This year there are way more prayers.

We begin our close-out prayers at the midnight hour of Monday, December 30.

We enter into the New Year, firing on all cylinders, praying like a hungry lion through Tuesday, December 31 to New Year's Day, Wednesday, January 1, 2020.

Without any apologies we continue our prayers everyday - day and night - till Sunday, January 12, 2020.

#### A total of 14 days.

Then we change the realm of our prayers, as we enter Level 1 (for those ALREADY signed up for the Academy).

Level 2 will be announced at this time.

#### **Calling All Our Prayer Warrior Eagles**

From Monday, December 30, 2019 fasting is mandatory (unless you have a medical condition that precludes fasting - please check with your doctor).

All prayer eagles on this site are to embark on a fasting-prayer program as follows -

(Again, please check with your doctor if you can fast... please do Not ask me as I'm not a physician):

Mon, Dec 30, 2019 - Partial fast (morning until 2:00 PM)

Tue, Dec 31, 2019 - Start of Esther Fast - DAY 1

Wed, Jan 1, 2020 - Esther Fast Cont'd - DAY 2

Thu, Jan 2, 2020 - End of Esther Fast (6:00 PM) - DAY 3

Fri, Jan 3, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Sat, Jan 4, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Sun, Jan 5, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Mon, Jan 6, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Tue, Jan 7, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Wed, Jan 8, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Thu, Jan 9, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Fri, Jan 10, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Sat, Jan 11, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

Sun, Jan 12, 2020 - Partial Fast (Morning till 3:00 PM)

#### **VERY IMPORTANT:**

#### The Proper Way to Break a Fast

(Suggestion only - not medical advice!)

You should not eat heavy meals at least 2 days before a long fast.

Rather you should take MORE fruits and drink a lot of water.

When you break your fast, you should never break with solid food.

You must break slowly. DO not take any cold water or drinks.

Warm water is preferable. Eat fruits such as oranges, pineapples, etc. for a while ...

... and drink a lot of water before attempting to eat any solid food.

When you have been on a long fast, you will need some days to slowly break.

For instance, if you fasted for 7 days, you'll need another 3 days to slowly break

- meaning in the following 3 days you should be on a diet of fruits and water, before introducing any heavy food.

This is because the end of a long fast is the most delicate time of a fast.

For those who did not conquer their appetite during the fast, there is a danger that they might overeat right after the fast, thereby causing severe problems for themselves.

In the event of that happening, quickly stop eating and begin another fast without food and water for at least 2 days and you should be alright.

#### Let me repeat this:

Please NOTE that this is not a medical prescription.

Always seek the advice of your doctor before taking any action that could affect your health.

What I have just said here should NOT be taken as medical advice.

Now to the prayers...

All the prayers should be prayed AT THE MIDNIGHT HOUR.

You should also find time during the day to continue with the prayers.

If, however, because of your work schedule, you are not able to pray at the midnight hour...

... then you should pray VERY early in the morning before 6:00 AM.

No excuses please.

If you do this diligently, you will surely experience the visitation of the LORD, the One who ordained this program.

For reasons of space and time, we can only pray a tiny fraction of these prayers here.

But right after the 14-day prayers at the gate of 2020, we will continue (without any break) with the follow-up programs I've mentioned already.

Please NOTE the following:

#### 1. Eagles in the current Prayer Academy

You will suspend all the prayers of the Prayer Academy for 14 days starting on Dec 30.

At the end of the program (on January 12, 2020) you will resume with the Prayer Academy lesson FOR THAT WEEK. Please make a note of the 14 days that you suspended the lessons.

You will go back and pray them at the end of the Post-Marathon prayers.

#### 2. Eagles completing the Platinum Edition

You will suspend all the prayers of the Platinum Edition for 14 days starting on Dec 30.

At the end of the program (on January 12, 2020) you will resume with the Platinum Edition prayers where you stopped.

#### 3. Eagles in the Gold Academy (Marriage Restoration)

You will suspend all the prayers of the Gold Academy for 14 days starting on Dec 30.

At the end of the program (on January 12, 2020) you will resume with the Gold Academy lesson FOR THAT WEEK.

Please make a note of the 14 days that you suspended the lessons.

You will have to go back and pray them after the last module of the program.

#### 4. Eagles waiting to complete the Singles Program...

Please watch for an email alert to start the next module. The Forum will not be open to new members until further notice.

#### 5. Eagles waiting to start the 2020 Sapphire Program...

You will receive an alert in the Forum regarding the program schedule.

#### 6. For All Others

You may join The Forum by going through the Prayer Academy first.

For alerts on the Prayer Academy starting after this program (Jan 25th) please click below for more details:

### Click Here to Access The NEXT Prayer Academy 2020>>

Thank you for your precious time and attention.

Be An Overcomer all through 2020

elisha goodman

\*\*\*\*\*

**Start Here** 

**Prayers to Storm the Gates of 2020** 

Cont'd next page ...

### Day ONE - Monday, Dec. 30, 2019

#### A Day of 3 Things

Scripture Ingredient: Isaiah 58: 6-11

"Is this not the fast which I choose, To loosen the bonds of wickedness, To undo the bands of the yoke, And to let the oppressed go free And break every yoke?

"Is it not to divide your bread with the hungry and bring the homeless poor into the house;

When you see the naked, to cover him; and not to hide yourself from your own flesh?

"Then your light will break out like the dawn, and your recovery will speedily spring forth;

And your righteousness will go before you; the glory of the LORD will be your rear guard.

"Then you will call, and the LORD will answer; If you remove the yoke from your midst,

The pointing of the finger and speaking wickedness,

And if you give yourself to the hungry and satisfy the desire of the afflicted,

Then your light will rise in darkness and your gloom will become like midday.

"And the LORD will continually guide you, And satisfy your desire in scorched places,

And give strength to your bones; And you will be like a watered garden,

And like a spring of water whose waters do not fail.

\*\*\*

#### This is very important.

We are going into fasting like the prophets and apostles of old.

A day before you begin the full fast (Dec 31), you will first give alms.

Please look around for the needy in your community and bless them generously.

You may give them money **(but pray first on the money please)**. You may buy groceries for them.

You could make or buy clothes and other valuable items for them.

This kind of compassionate action, if motivated by the love of Christ, always attracts the attention of Heaven (see scripture above).

Our LORD taught us exactly how to give in Matt. 6:1-4:

"Beware of practicing your righteousness before men to be noticed by them; otherwise you have no reward with your Father who is in heaven.

"So when you give to the poor, do not sound a trumpet before you, as the hypocrites do in the synagogues and in the streets, so that they may be honored by men.

Truly I say to you, they have their reward in full. But when you give to the poor, do not let your left hand know what your right hand is doing, so that your giving will be in secret; and your Father who sees what is done in secret will reward you."

This is a key foundation of biblical fasting. And you need to do this before you even begin the program.

#### Day 1: A Day of Repentance

The very first step to take is acknowledge that you have made mistakes in the past and sinned greatly against the LORD, knowingly or unknowingly.

You go to Him with godly sorrow and deep repentance in your heart, confessing your sins and the sins of your ancestors, following Daniel's godly example in Daniel 9.

Here Daniel was praying for the restoration of Jerusalem.

You should follow that model and in place of Jerusalem, substitute your family and your divine destiny.

This is such a crucial step. You must do it slowly, all day and possibly during the night too.

Confess your sins one by one.

Mention them by name, especially sexual sins.

Do not forget the hidden sins of the heart, chief among them mentioned in Gal. 5:19-21.

Then ask GOD for forgiveness and mercy. For those sins one by one.

Believe that the LORD has forgiven you as He has promised in His Word.

Please note that the Holy Spirit will remind you of many un-repented sins.

You need to repent of them all if you REALLY want to receive answers in this program.

This is what will set the tone and lay the foundation for the rest of this 14-day prayer marathon.

It is what will activate divine intervention in every area of your life ...

... maybe the LORD has been waiting a long time for you to get on your knees and do this properly and thoroughly!

# Day 1 Cont'd: A Day to Renounce and Revoke

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

After thorough repentance (please note that repentance may last for hours) then you will be ready to renounce your involvement in ungodly associations, if applicable.

#### Here's a good example:

If you were a member of any ungodly fraternity or cult group at any time (or you know that your parents or ancestors were) and you've never done this properly, you might want to pray like this:

- 1. Lord, I repent of my involvement with this ...... group (mention the name).
- 2. I ask for your forgiveness. Please wash me clean with the blood of Jesus Christ.
- 3. Holy Spirit, please help me never to go back to my own vomit.
- 4. I hereby renounce my association with this ..... group in Jesus' name (mention the name).
- 5. I reject all the properties of this evil group in my possession and I release the fire of God to burn them to ashes in Jesus' name.

I bind all the spirits, powers, entities, strongholds associated with this evil group and I cast them out of my life forever by the power in the blood of Jesus Christ.

In Jesus' name I command these powers to loose their hold upon my life right now. I cancel every evil claim of ownership upon my life in Jesus Christ name.

- 6. I silence every evil voice speaking against my life from the camp of the wicked by the power of the blood of Jesus.
- 7. I appropriate the blood of Jesus to cleanse me from every consequence of my involvement in \_\_\_\_
- 8. I renounce every coffin spirit, spirit of false martyrdom, assault, rape, gang attacks in the name of Jesus.
- 9. I renounce and reject witchcraft / occult signs, symbols and jewelry in the name of Jesus Christ.
- 10. I renounce all curses on my eyes, stomach/womb, body organs, hands, legs, in Jesus' name.
- 11. Thank You LORD for answering my prayers.

# Day 1 Cont'd: A Day of Thanksgiving & Praise

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

Start by singing praises to the Lord and worshiping Him for a long time...

After that begin to pray like this ... with a loud voice:

- 1. From today, whatever I do in word or deed, I do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God and the Father by him. (Col.3:17)
- 2. I join the heavenly hosts to shout: "We give thanks to you, Lord God Almighty, the One who is and who was, because you have taken your great power and have begun to reign. (Rev 11:17)
- 3. I give thanks always for all things to God and the Father in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ (Eph 5:20)
- 4. I add my voice whenever the living beings give glory and honor and thanks to the One sitting on the throne, the One who lives forever and ever (Rev 4:9).
- 5. In everything I give thanks: for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus concerning me (1 Thess 5:18).
- 6. I give thanks to the Father, who has qualified me to share in the inheritance of the saints in Light. (Col 1:12)
- 7. I give thanks to the LORD, for He is good: for His mercy endures forever. ... Ps 107:1
- 8. I give thanks to the LORD and proclaim his greatness; the whole world must hear what he has done. Ps 105:1
- 9. I give thanks to the God of heaven, for his steadfast love endures forever. Ps 136:26
- 10. Save us, O God our Savior; gather us and deliver us from the nations, that we may give thanks to your holy name, that we may glory in your praise. 1 Chr. 16:35
- 11.I arise to give thanks to you because of your righteous judgments. Ps 119:62
- 12. I enter His gates with thanksgiving and His courts with praise, blessed be His holy name. Ps 100:4

- 13. You are my God, and I give thanks to you; my God, I honor you highly. Ps 118:28
- 14. In the day of my deliverance, I will say: "Give thanks to the LORD, call upon his name, make known his deeds among the peoples, proclaim that his name is exalted." Isa 12:4
- 15. Open to me the gates of righteousness; I shall enter through them, I shall give thanks to the LORD. Ps 118:19
- 16. I thank You Lord for answering my prayer and giving me victory. Ps 118:21
- 17. But we your people, the sheep of your pasture, will give thanks to you forever; from generation to generation we will recount your praise, O LORD. Ps 79:13
- 18. With my mouth I will give thanks abundantly to the LORD; and in the midst of many I will praise Him Ps 109:30
- 19. "I will praise you, O LORD. Although you were once angry with me, your anger has turned away and you have comforted me. Isa 12:1
- 20. I will give thanks to You, for I am fearfully and wonderfully made; Wonderful are Your works, and my soul knows it very well. Ps 139:14
- 21. To you, O God of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob, I give thanks and praise, for you have given me wisdom and might. Dan 2:23

PLEASE SPEND QUALITY TIME TO WORSHIP THE LORD.

# Day TWO Tuesday, Dec. 31, 2019

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

Scripture Ingredient: Psalm 102:2

Hide not thy face from me in the day when I am in trouble; incline thine ear unto me: in the day when I call, answer me speedily.

Today's Prayers Will Be In 4 Sessions:

Today is the day to confront the Gates of 2020.

That would happen later in the evening.

But before that, there a very crucial activity you need to carry out FIRST.

# **Session ONE: During the Day**

You will go before the LORD today and explain to Him why you are embarking on this prayer-fasting journey.

His word says in Isa. 41:21:

Produce your cause, said the LORD; bring forth your strong reasons, said the King of Jacob..

Please be sincere.

After giving Him the reasons why you are going on this program, the next thing is for you to set specific times for your prayers.

These are the times you may want to consider ... to bring your prayer requests before the LORD.

Suggested times include:

12 midnight, 3a.m, 6a.m, 9 a.m., 12 noon, 3 p.m., 6 p.m.

Depending on your work schedule, please select some hours that you can stick to.

Then lift up your voice to the LORD at those hours and see what He will do.

Session TWO: 11:33 PM - 11:55 PM

Session THREE: 11:55 PM - 12:30 PM

Session FOUR: 12:45 AM - 1:30 AM

### SESSION TWO Tuesday (11:33 PM - 11:55 PM)

NOTE: You will start these prayers at exactly 27 minutes to midnight on Tuesday, December 31, 2019.

- 1. O LORD let your chariots of fire appear for me in battle tonight in the name of Jesus.
- 2. Every covenant of darkness in my foundation be permanently broken now in the name of Jesus.
- 3. Every periodic spirit of failure and bondage in my life be cut off, burn to ashes in Jesus name
- 4. Any power standing in the gap to renew bondages in my life, fall down and die in the name of Jesus
- 5. You my enemies in 2019, you will see me no more; I am crossing over to 2020, to my land of plenty and abundance in Jesus name.
- 6. Let the power of God within me be activated to pull down the kingdom of every strongman in my life in Jesus name.
- 7. O Earth, hide not the wrongs done to me; let my call for divine justice NEVER be silenced in Jesus name.
- 8. Evil cry of ancestral idols against my destiny, be silenced now by the blood of Jesus.
- 9. Satanic accusation against me at the gate of my father's house, be cancelled by the power of the blood of Jesus.
- 10. Every contrary power demanding worship or sacrifice from me, I present to you the Cross of Christ and the Blood of Jesus.
- 11. Every problem with long tail afflicting my life, be consumed by the fire of God in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 12. Satanic evidence tendered by wicked spirits against my life, be rendered null and void by the blood of Jesus.
- 13. All my blessings captured and transferred by familiar spirits in 2019, be released to me now in the name of Jesus Christ.

- 14. All my blessings captured and transferred by ancestral strongmen and women in 2019, be released now by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 15. All my blessings captured and transferred by satanic horsemen at the gate of my father's house, be released now by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 16. All my blessings captured and buried by "frenemies", be exhumed now by fire in the name of Jesus. (NOTE: frenemies are enemies masquerading as friends).
- 17. All sicknesses and infirmities planted in my life in 2019, be uprooted now, go back to your sender in the name of Jesus.
- 18. Every owner of evil load in 2019, carry your load by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 19. Thank You LORD for answering my prayers.

### **SESSION THREE: Tuesday Night**

(11:55 PM - 12:30 AM Wed Morning)

Confession: Psalm 24:7-10

"Lift up your head, O ye gates; and be ye lift up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of glory shall come in. Who is this King of glory? The LORD strong and mighty, the LORD mighty in battle. Lift up your heads, O ye gates; even lift them up, ye everlasting doors; and the King of glory shall come in. Who is this King of glory? The LORD of hosts, he is the King of glory."

- 1. Let the doors and gates of 2020 open unto me now in the mighty name of Jesus (at least 5 minutes please).
- 2. (With your hand pointed to the heavens declare:) you my heavens in 2020, open by fire in the name of Jesus
- 3. Let the womb of 2020 open and release my divine benefits now in the name of Jesus
- 4. Let my divine helpers for 2020 be released to locate me now in the name of Jesus
- 5. All my assigned helpers for 2020, both human and angelic, hear the word of the Lord: arise and locate me now in the name of Jesus.

- 6. This year I appoint all my spiritual enemies to the sword, to captivity, to famine, and death in the name of Jesus.
- 7. In this year 2020, the heavens shall declare the glory of God over my life in the name of Jesus.
- 8. In this year 2020, the sun, moon and stars shall cooperate with my divine destiny in the name of Jesus.
- 9. O God of signs and wonders, overshadow my life with your glory, signs and wonders this New Year in the name of Jesus.
- 10 (This is a 21-fold prayer ... meaning you shout it at the top of your voice 21 thunderous times, with both hands lifted up, if you can.)
  - O Spirit and Power of resurrection, fall afresh upon my life in the name of Jesus
  - 11. Holy Spirit, activate my spiritual womb for divine conception in Jesus name
  - 12. Holy Spirit, activate my spiritual wings to fly like an eagle this year in Jesus name
  - 13. Holy Spirit, activate my hands to prosper this year in Jesus name.
  - 14. Holy Spirit, activate my feet to possess the land in the name of Jesus.
  - 15. Holy Spirit, activate my eyes to see the glory of God
  - 16. Holy Spirit, activate my ears to hear in the spirit.
  - 17. Holy Spirit, activate my heart to receive divine wisdom and understanding in Jesus name.
  - 18. Holy Spirit, activate my soul to receive divine knowledge in Jesus name.
  - 19. Holy Spirit, activate my tongue to prophesy by fire in Jesus name.
  - 20. Holy Spirit, activate my body to receive divine healing in Jesus name.
  - 21. Holy Spirit, activate my hands to war and my fingers to fight in Jesus name.
  - 22. Holy Spirit, activate my body, soul and spirit for great revival in Jesus name.
  - 23. My prayer altar, receive power for signs and wonders in Jesus name.
  - 24. You my life, receive fresh fire for divine exploits this year in the name of Jesus.
  - 25. Lord I thank you for your answers to my prayers.

#### **SESSION FOUR**

(12:45 AM ... )

**Wednesday Morning** (12:45 AM - Until the Holy Spirit gives you a release to stop)

- 1. Re-dedicate yourself to the Lord for the New Year
- 2. Anoint yourself, your academic certificates, wedding certificate or gown or ring, business documents, check books, your home, and anything you want to receive DIVINE FAVOR in 2020...

using the verses of James 5:14-15;

- ... then forcefully and loudly speak the blessings of Deuteronomy 28: 1-14 on yourself and your family. (Please do this with holy passion.)
  - 3. Praise and thank the Lord for as long as you can.
  - 4. Now is the time to pray for your friends, family, Church, your leaders, your nation ... and those that the Holy Spirit brings to your heart.

## Day THREE Wednesday, Jan. 1, 2020

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

**Scripture Ingredient**: Deut. 33:27

The eternal God is thy refuge, and underneath are the everlasting arms: and He shall thrust out the enemy from before thee, and shall say, destroy them.

- 1. I decree that this year the blessings of the Lord shall flow like a river into my dwelling in the name of Jesus.
- Every agenda of my enemies concerning the affairs of my life this year be completely destroyed in Jesus name
- 3. O Lord, let the mind of our children NEVER be closed to divine instruction in Jesus name.
- 4. I eject every unprofitable tenant from my life by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 5. You spirit of debt slavery, loose your hold over my life and die in the name of Jesus.
- 6. Thou ancestral goliath of my father's house, your time is up, die in the name of lesus.
- 7. Thou ancestral goliath of my mother's house, your time is up, die in the name of Jesus.
- 8. O God of new beginnings, begin exciting new thing in my life this year in Jesus name.
- 9. I break the yokes of every territorial bondage over my life in the name of Jesus.
- 10. Thou power of resurrection, fall afresh upon me now in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 11. Designers of grave clothes, carry your evil load and die in the name of Jesus.
- 12. Every locust spirit anointed to eat my harvest this year, be roasted by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 13. Powers from my place of birth, your weapons shall not prosper in Jesus name.
- 14. Anyone drawing power from the heavenlies against me, die in your iniquity in Jesus name.
- 15. Every enchantment and divination against my head, fall down and perish in the name of Jesus.
- 16.0 God arise and put my enemies to shame in Jesus name.
- 17.I refuse to be a wandering star; thou star of my destiny arise and shine brightly in Jesus name.
- 18.O heavens lift up your sword, kill every stubborn pursuer of my destiny in the name of Jesus.
- 19. Every dark document caging my life, catch fire and burn to ashes in the name of Jesus.
- 20. Blood of Jesus, silence every dark voice speaking against my life in Jesus name.

#### 21. Lord, thank you for answering my prayers

## Day FOUR Thursday, Jan. 2, 2020

**Scripture Ingredient**: 1 John 3 v 8b

For this purpose the Son of God was manifested, that He might destroy the works of the devil.

- 1. Holy Spirit empower me to recover all that the enemy has stolen from my life in Jesus name.
- 2. Holy Spirit, envelop my life with mercy and grace, let the manifestation of God's glory in my life be visible this year in Jesus name.
- 3. Every priest of darkness preparing an evil audit against my destiny, be burnt to ashes in Jesus name
- 4. Let the enemies of my enemies triumph over them in Jesus name.
- 5. O LORD, deliver me from profitless hard work this year in Jesus name.
- 6. I refuse to gamble with my destiny; you destiny diverters die by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 7. O God arise and disgrace the fowlers and hunters of my destiny in Jesus name.
- 8. I curse, I rebuke, I prophesy against every embargo placed on way of progress this year in Jesus name.
- 9. My heavens will not become brass this year in the name of Jesus.
- 10. Powers assigned to rearrange problems in my life, fall down and die in the name of Jesus.
- 11. Every satanic law working against my destiny, I cancel and render null and void in Jesus name.
- 12. Anything buried against my destiny, be roasted by the fire of God's judgment now in Jesus name.

- 13.I use the broom of fire to sweep out evil occupants from my home in Jesus name (Note: please demonstrate this prophetically).
- 14. Fire of deliverance fall upon my life in the name of Jesus
- 15.I destroy evil hidden structures in my life with the earthquake of the Lord in Jesus name.
- 16. I cross my local Jordan; I enter into my promised land today in Jesus name.
- 17. I will not fall into the gutter of destiny this year in Jesus name.
- 18.0 Lord, deliver my soul from the prison of land covenants in the name of Jesus.
- 19. (Lay your hands on your body) Let my hands become anointed for deliverance, healing and breakthroughs in Jesus name.
- 20. Earthquake of the LORD arise, uproot every satanic altar assigned against my family in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day FIVE Friday, Jan. 3, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: 2 Tim. 4:18

And the LORD shall deliver me from every evil work, and will preserve me unto His heavenly kingdom: to whom be glory for ever and ever. Amen.

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

1. (Pray in the Spirit for 10 minutes, then take this prayer)

"I receive the baptism of fire in the name of Jesus."

- 2. Fire of the Holy Ghost, enter into my bones in the name of Jesus Christ.
- 3. Let my prayers attract divine attention all through this year in Jesus name.
- 4. Holy Spirit, breathe life into my heart and lift the veil of fear from me so that I can completely trust and rely on you in Jesus name.

- 5. O my soul, worry NOT; the same God who feeds the ravens and clothes the lilies has my family covered.
- 6. This year I shall not suffer lack in the name of Jesus.
- 7. Every spirit of grief and sorrow, my family is not your candidate in Jesus name.
- 8. You agents of bewitchment, my life is not your candidate, therefore die in the name of Jesus.
- 9. Satanic clock and calendar fashioned against my life, I set you on fire in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 10. I jump into the river of power of the Holy Ghost in Jesus name.
- 11. Thou spirit of Armageddon, loose your hold upon my life in the name of Jesus.
- 12. I refuse to be caged by the waters; thou powers of the marine kingdom, release my life and die in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 13. My birthplace shall not be my cauldron; my place of residence shall not be my cauldron in the name of Jesus.
- 14. I sprinkle the blood of Jesus on my doorposts and gates in Jesus name.
- 15. Every Judas of the night, I bury you by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 16. My eagle shall not be caged this year; thou eagle of my destiny arise and soar in the name of Jesus.
- 17.0 Lord, manifest your raw power in all my battles this year in Jesus name.
- 18. Covenant-keeping God of Abraham, Isaac and Jacob, release your virtues into my life in Jesus name.
- 19. Anything planted in my life by witchcraft powers, die die in the name of Jesus.
- 20. Every enemy that comes while I am asleep, your time is up, die in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day SIX Saturday, Jan. 4, 2020

**Scripture Ingredient**: Zech 9:11

As for me, through the blood of thy covenant thou hast delivered me from the pit that has no water.

- 1. I raise an altar of total deliverance over my life today in Jesus name.
- 2. My personal Tower of Babel, collapse in the name of Jesus.
- 3. Every garment making my life to stink in the spirit, be roasted by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 4. Holy Spirit, feed me in a green pasture; lead me forth beside the waters of comfort throughout this year in Jesus name
- 5. I refuse to participate in any project designed to cage my destiny in Jesus name.
- 6. Holy Spirit, help me to turn away from superficial things assigned to distract me this year in Jesus name.
- 7. Holy Spirit, deliver me from whatever keeps me off my true calling in Jesus name.
- 8. Any personality sharing my life with me in the spirit, be destroyed by the thunder fire of God in Jesus name.
- 9. My destiny jump out of every satanic cage in the name of Jesus.
- 10. Every miracle that has eluded me in the past, be restored 7-fold in the name of Jesus.
- 11. I plug myself into the electrical power grid of the Holy Ghost.
- 12.0 Lord, recharge my genetic code with your fire in the name of Jesus.
- 13. I leave behind the ordinary level of promotion in Jesus name.
- 14. I wipe off all my records from the satanic databases in Jesus name.
- 15. This year I refuse to be disconnected from my divine source of power in the name of Jesus.
- 16. Any power using my glory to prosper fall down and die in the name of Jesus.

- 17. Any power assigned to make a shipwreck of my faith, Holy Spirit, release your security angels to track them down and kill them in Jesus name.
- 18. Every secret root of infirmity in my life die by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 19. Satanic deposits in my body, come out now in the name of Jesus (pray with your hands on your head).
- 20. Blood of Jesus destroy every demonic document in my blood in Jesus name.
- 21. Lord I thank you for answering my prayers.

## Day SEVEN Sunday, Jan. 5, 2020

#### Scripture Ingredient: Rev. 12:11

And they overcame him by the blood of the Lamb and by the word of their testimony, and they loved not their lives unto the death.

- 1. Holy Spirit, help me not to limit you to my capacity.
- 2. Lord Jesus, impart to me thoughts higher than my own thoughts.
- 3. Every enemy of excellence in my life, be burnt to ashes in the name of Jesus.
- 4. Holy Spirit, out of You comes fire for divine exploits; let Your fire rekindle my inner man in Jesus name.
- 5. Power to render diviners mad fall upon my tongue in the name of Jesus.
- 6. Every weapon of the dust targeted against my life, backfire in the name of Jesus.
- 7. I overpower witchcraft-sponsored agenda by the power of the blood of Jesus.
- 8. I reject disgrace; those planning disgrace for me, fall on your own sword in Jesus name.
- 9. O Lord, sweeten the waters of my life in Jesus name.
- 10. I refuse to be a prayer warrior in slumber; spirit of slumber, depart by fire in Jesus name.

- 11.I overcome every hidden power behind \_\_\_\_\_ failure (pick from the underlisted) in the name of Jesus.
  - 1. Prayer
  - 2. Marital
  - 3. Business
  - 4. Financial
  - 5. Ministerial
- 12. I quench the strife of tongues against my destiny in Jesus name.
- 13. I refuse to be a student in the school of adversity in Jesus name.
- 14.0 Lord, give unto me the power to trouble my troublers in Jesus name.
- 15. Anointing to excel over and above my contemporaries fall upon my life in the name of Jesus.
- 16. Let my time of divine visitation appear now in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 17. Every private enemy be suffocated by the blood of Jesus.
- 18. I break the power of wicked linkages over my life in the name of Jesus.
- 19. I withdraw my blood from every evil altar in the name of Jesus.
- 20. You dead organs in my body come alive by the blood of Jesus.
- 21. Lord I thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day EIGHT Monday, Jan. 6, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Obad 1:17

But upon Mount Zion shall be deliverance, and there shall be holiness; and the house of Jacob shall possess their possessions.

Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

1. By the power of the blood of Jesus, I come against every spirit of deception in Jesus name.

- 2. Holy Spirit, help me to disconnect my heart and mind from worldly things in Jesus name.
- 3. Holy Spirit, help me and let my authentic voice, story and identity manifest this year in Jesus name.
- 4. Every power assigned to turn my heavens to brass this year I curse you to die in the name of Jesus.
- 5. O heavens fight for me this year in Jesus name.
- 6. I break every wicked cycle over my life by the power of the blood of Jesus.
- 7. I receive the power for explosive success this year in Jesus name.
- 8. Let every seed of the serpent in my life be consumed by fire in Jesus name.
- 9. I recover all my assets from the hands of destroyers in Jesus name.
- 10. Thou stones of the wicked, go back to your senders in Jesus name.
- 11. I receive deliverance from the rod of the wicked in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 12. Thou battle at the edge of my breakthroughs die die die in the name of Jesus.
- 13.I reverse and break every hidden curse working against my destiny in the name of Jesus.
- 14.0 Lord soak me in your divine favor this year in Jesus name.
- 15.0 Lord, reveal unto me the secrets of powerful breakthroughs in Jesus name.
- 16. You the heavens over my head, open by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 17. I unseat the servant riding on my horse of honor by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 18. Every magnet of darkness inside my body, jump out now, go back to your sender in the name of Jesus.
- 19. Every problem assigned to ridicule me, die in the name of Jesus.
- 20. All my virtues stolen in the dream be restored by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord, I thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day NINE Tuesday, Jan. 7, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Luke 10:19

Behold, I give unto you power to tread on serpents and scorpions, and over all the power of the enemy: and nothing shall by any means hurt you.

- 1. Holy Spirit, help me not to dwell on past failures; help me to trust and depend on you to move me forward by fire.
- 2. Lord Jesus, let my life be a reflection of your glory day by day.
- 3. I am determined to make Heaven; O heavens fight for me in Jesus name.
- 4. Every power attacking my vehicle of destiny, be buried alive in Jesus name.
- 5. Thou principalities in my heavens I pull you down in the name of Jesus.
- 6. Vision killers in the camp of my life, be exposed and be disgraced in Jesus name.
- 7. Dream killers of my father's house, receive the judgment of God in Jesus name.
- 8. Powers stealing my virtues in the dream be crushed by the Rock of Ages in the name of Jesus.
- 9. O Lord, deliver my bloodline from evil traders in Jesus name.
- 10.0 Lord, purge my life for divine promotion today in Jesus name.
- 11. I refuse to be a casualty in the spiritual war in Jesus name.
- 12. Dark drivers of my destiny die die die in the name of Jesus (pray it 3 hot times).
- 13. Every unfriendly friend in the camp of my life, be exposed and be disgraced in Jesus name.
- 14. Monitoring spirits, evil observers assigned against my life, receive double blindness in Jesus name.
- 15. You shadow forces be scattered by the light of God in Jesus name.
- 16.0 Lord, deliver me from my strong enemies (pray it 7 times).
- 17. Every pronouncement from occultic shrines working against my life, die in the name of Jesus.
- 18. I gun down every spiritual assassin assigned against me in the name of Jesus.

- 19. Every enchantment against my blood, be silenced by the power in the blood of Jesus.
- 20. I deprogram and cancel all witchcraft prophecies over my life in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord, I thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day TEN Wednesday, Jan. 8, 2020

**Scripture Ingredient**: Psalm 27:2

When the wicked, even mine enemies and my foes, came upon me to eat up my flesh, they stumbled and fell. Take a moment to praise and worship the LORD.

- 1. Holy Spirit, untangle the knots within me so I can worship the Lord with all my strength.
- 2. Holy Spirit, move my destiny to the place of God's will in Jesus name.
- 3. Covenant of affliction break by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 4. Anti-success witchcraft from my place of origin, die die die in the name of Jesus.
- 5. Thou masquerades of destiny diversion, my life is not your candidate, therefore die in Jesus name.
- 6. I terminate every evil shepherd over my life in Jesus name (please pray this one in your local language i.e. your first language or language at birth, if you can).
- 7. This year I shall not be wasted in Jesus name.
- 8. O Lord, grant me victory over the storms of life in Jesus name.
- 9. Special Announcement: my life is not for sale in the name of Jesus.
- 10. Every enemy of my anointing, fall down and perish in Jesus name.
- 11. I command the anointing of failure to dry up now in Jesus name.
- 12.I choose life; I reject the waters of death in Jesus name.

- 13. Every problem at the gate of my breakthrough, clear away by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 14. My problems shall become my promotion in Jesus name.
- 15. Arrows of death fired against me, go back to your senders with 7-fold strength in Jesus name.
- 16. Every poverty strategy of territorial wickedness, be scattered unto desolation in Jesus name.
- 17.0 God arise and bring upon the agents of witchcraft the day of disaster in the name of Jesus.
- 18.I speak destruction unto every witchcraft assignment against my life in the name of Jesus.
- 19. I cut down every tree of failure in my family line in the name of Jesus.
- 20. Every witchcraft network in my environment, be scattered by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord thank you for answering my prayers.

# Day ELEVEN Thursday, Jan. 9, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Rom. 16:20

And the God of peace shall bruise satan under your feet shortly. The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with you. Amen.

- 1. My Pharaohs, Goliaths and Herods shall die suddenly in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 2. Strange enemies fighting against Firesprings Ministries, receive angelic slap and be eaten by worms of fire in Jesus name.
- 3. Dark decisions, dark pronouncements against Firesprings Ministries, backfire in the name of Jesus.

- 4. Serpents and scorpions released against the affairs of Firesprings Ministries, die die die in Jesus name.
- 5. We break down every altar of witchcraft and occultism raised against Firesprings Ministries in Jesus name.
- 6. International demons gathered against Firesprings Ministries, we release Psalm 109 against you in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 7. Every expectation of the wicked concerning Firesprings Ministries shall scatter in Jesus name.
- 8. Thou star of Firesprings Ministries, hear the word of the Lord; arise and shine, never go down in the name of Jesus.
- Bondage of slavery of my father's house, break break break in the name of Jesus.
- 10. Lord Jesus yoke breaker, break all my yokes today.
- 11. Covenant blood of Jesus Christ, set me free from every satanic bondage now in Jesus name.
- 12. Let the mercy, favor and the glory of God overshadow my life all through this year in Jesus name.
- 13. Let my destiny be released to flourish in Jesus name.
- 14.0 Lord position me for supernatural breakthroughs as from today in Jesus name.
- 15. Blood of Jesus arise in your power, fight for me this year in the name of Jesus.
- 16.I bless myself and my family in the name of Jesus.
- 17. Every power bringing evil load in my dreams, carry your load and die in the name of Jesus.
- 18.I recover every good thing the enemy has stolen from my life in the name of Jesus.
- 19. Any power assigned to make me miss my divine appointment, receive the judgment of death in the name of Jesus.
- 20. Any power calling my name from a coffin die die die in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord I thank you for answering my prayers.

## Day TWELVE Friday, Jan. 10, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Matt 16: 18-19

And I say also to you, that you are Peter, and on this rock I will build my church; and the gates of hell shall not prevail against it.

And I will give to you the keys of the kingdom of heaven: and whatever you shall bind on earth shall be bound in heaven:

and whatever you shall loose on earth shall be loosed in heaven.

- 1. Fire of revival and great awakening, fall upon the Body of Christ this year in the name of Jesus.
- 2. Every doctrine of demons infiltrating the Church, be exposed and be disgraced in the name of Jesus.
- 3. Lord, prepare us to preach your undiluted word, in season and out of season in Jesus name.
- 4. O God arise and defend your Church this year in Jesus name.
- 5. Let every structure erected by the sons of Sodom against the Church be pulled down in the name of Jesus.
- 6. We come against every satanic take-over of the pulpit in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 7. Let every organized assault against the Body of Christ receive the instant judgement of God in Jesus name.
- 8. We cancel every enchantment and divination against the ministers of the Gospel in Jesus name.
- 9. Every marine agent assigned to bring down the true ministers of the Gospel this year, receive open disgrace and defeat in the name of Jesus.

- 10.O Lord, let your wind of revival begin to blow across the churches all around the globe in the name of Jesus.
- 11.0 Lord, prepare us and send down revival in the mighty name of Jesus.
- 12.O Lord, be unto the church like a wall of fire roundabout and the glory in her midst in Jesus name.
- 13.LORD, we thank you for your mercies upon the entire Body of Christ in Jesus name.
- 14. Every power assigned to scatter the Church of Jesus Christ, be scattered unto desolation in Jesus name.
- 15.0 LORD ordain terrifying noises against the enemies of the Gospel in Jesus name.
- 16. Holy Spirit wake up the Church from spiritual slumber In Jesus name.
- 17.0 LORD create in us a clean heart and renew a right spirit within us.
- 18.0 LORD show us how to seek your kingdom first.
- 19. Father, let not the cares of this world choke and kill your word in our lives in Jesus name.
- 20. Evil birds assigned to steal the word of God from our hearts, fall down and die in Jesus name.
- 21. LORD thank you for answering our prayers.

## Day THIRTEEN Saturday, Jan. 11, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Num. 23:23

Surely there is no enchantment against Jacob, neither is there any divination against Israel; according to this time it shall be said of Jacob and of Israel: What hath God wrought!

- 1. Strongman of dream manipulation, I am not your candidate, release me and die in the name of Jesus.
- 2. O LORD let your chariots of fire appear in my dreams in the name of Jesus.
- 3. All my virtues stolen in the dream I recover them by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 4. All those making evil pronouncements against Firesprings Ministries, Holy Spirit release your battle angels to track them down and silence them in Jesus name.
- 5. Let every satanic attack against my life in the dream be converted to victory in Jesus name.
- 6. Spirit of the Living God, come upon my life and place a shield of protection around me in the name of Jesus.
- 7. Let anything and everything manipulated against me in the dream be completely destroyed by the power in the blood of Jesus.
- 8. Power of sin in my life die die die in the name of Jesus.
- 9. O God arise and help me to empty myself of sin and evil strangers in Jesus name.
- 10. Fingers of darkness pointed against my destiny, wither and die in the name of Jesus.
- 11. I refuse to eat at the dining table of darkness in Jesus name.
- 12. Thou spirit of mammon, lose your hold upon my life in Jesus name.
- 13. Every enemy of Firesprings Ministries, fall down and die in the name of Jesus.
- 14. Every satanic counterfeit set up to divert believers from Firesprings Ministries, be exposed and be disgraced in Jesus name.
- 15. Anything planted in my life to demote my spiritual life die by fire in Jesus name.
- 16. Every power that does not want me to walk with the LORD, die in the name of Jesus.
- 17. Darkness shall not take the glory in my life in Jesus name.
- 18. Thou power of God open my eyes to see in the spirit.
- 19. I reject every spirit of unforgiveness in Jesus name.
- 20. Door of divine favor open unto now in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord, I thank you for answering my prayers.

### Day FOURTEEN Sunday, Jan. 12, 2020

Scripture Ingredient: Col. 2:14-15

Blotting out the handwriting of ordinances that was against us, which was contrary to us, and took it out of the way, nailing it to his cross; And having spoiled principalities and powers, he made a show of them openly, triumphing over them in it.

- 1. I destroy the root of marital destruction in my family line in Jesus name.
- 2. Every thief hiding in my destiny, be arrested by the security angels of God in Jesus name.
- 3. I overthrow every dominion of iniquity over my life in the name of Jesus.
- 4. Evil night birds of witchraft flying against my destiny, crash and burn to ashes in Jesus name.
- 5. O Lord, make me sensitive to my time of divine visitation in Jesus name.
- 6. Every counterfeit prophecy over my life, be cancelled and be nullified by the power of the blood of Jesus.
- 7. Thou power of God, pursue my pursuers, confront my confronters today in Jesus name.
- 8. The finger of God shall write the obituary of my enemies in Jesus name.
- 9. O Lord help me to draw closer to you this year in Jesus name.
- 10.0 Lord show me visions of heaven in my dreams in Jesus name.
- 11.0 Lord, show me my divine spiritual assignment in Jesus name.
- 12.0 Lord, give me dreams that will add to my life in Jesus name.
- 13. Dream attackers, eat your own flesh and drink your own blood in Jesus name.
- 14.0 Lord empower me to receive divine revelations in my dreams in Jesus name.
- 15. Let the shame of my enemies be multiplied greatly in Jesus name.
- 16. Lord I thank you for your divine presence in my life.
- 17. Every lost blessing of my family I recover you by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 18.I destroy the power of stagnation and limitation in the name of Jesus.

- 19. My life, receive the touch of fire in the name of Jesus.
- 20. Satanic hunter dogs hunting for my life die by fire in the name of Jesus.
- 21. Lord I thank you for answering my prayers.

\*\*\*\*\*

### Click Here to Access The NEXT Prayer Academy 2020>>

== THE END ==